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oLellaterol proc cedi nqys Y FhaS metter

o Were not met, and  Hae irregulacities

n_the oy oot the State Vindictive l\w}

hicde 18 intentions from Wweber b Y00 +
giving him netice of the date  kime

and. . ccusSe Lor encl of the leard nc}S

et M Welbe . Unprepare. A_to. _preSen 1

Frowgcgc\\nj S,

s MOJHOI’\SCV\AC\FC} wments to e
Couwrt ot ev 65"\,5 +urn ,res wlt+i A Tl
~ AN
o Fundamentall YU Lol collaterel

The Courts have recog Nnized In
Tellevik T , 125 wWn.2d D571 tHhat “Due

_proceSs oaffecdsS an itndividual Hie

T\ﬁ\l Wi t0 notice and an app.o -l Jm)

444444 j 4
o be heard (ihen fhe government de-

prives Fhe indivi dual of \ife, liberty

\
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ofr PFUDCI“H\ interest. See Telleyik T

26 wn.ad od 32~ B3, Mollane V.  Centsal
Hanover Dank & !méJr CO., ©59_U.S.

oG, 319, 94 L.EA. 8¢5, Ta $.Ct (52

(1 CI SO )l N

.9 DI Weber weas Senteqced to o \ife.

56’1+&’\QQ Wit No Possi bi \Hrux of Parfole

e OFfCeonder AQC_O L/\I/L+ elor 114 Y .r/\ ¢t for o

£ist ?qu We Was in mS:o&e af +he

o | \/\/c\st}nﬂ-l-on State Penitentioar Y an d

g,u'\
hed olkle e discover an C\Lw wned ence.

____________ N _of evideace proving that he Was

Convicted under perjured teStimeny
C\rw\ et raudulent misrepres enteotion

of Yhe evideace bwmﬂxeﬂ State, S0 the

_Dature of WIS Cconviction omi +he

Sm/ernirus of Jrhc é\epmvahon of \ms

\lr\\q’% LS ijerelw FF@,\\_IU\AJCJCLL' SQQ

~

Mathews VvV, o\ef‘\c\qe. 424 0.8, 319, A7

LEd.2d 13,96 s ot 895 (1970).

(e I‘o\» lure +o Q@mp\u} wmk Jrke ?Vowcm‘emo\b\&“q

—
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it K S

tent _1njacy +o ........ co moer‘ S Jrf\n cl 1 mj

Dicta In_lujen V. Defender SQ?
wWildlife . S04 0.8 555, 572 n7, 112

S.Ct 2130, 119 L. Ed.2d 551 (1992)

Tn_ Mullane Ve Centlal

_Dank & Trust (0., 839 0.8, D506, D13,

Yanavelr

94 LEA., 3C5H, Fo Sct 652 (1950),

et o o

LAhe court lheld ' I€ feasible, nofice

feaSonably Y Qq\ cul O\Jreo\ to

SO R —

in {’ or M §> artleS

Qr C\c\\erse\u c\JFFac_wL +L\en€‘ \e,qc\l\q

pro Jrec,‘rec)\ mjrer\&s*‘ St )OL ql\/er\\

M, \MC\QEFS (‘,\Or\SHi-v\Jrlonc\\ l’mqlq‘vs

o Due ProecessS wnder beth 54‘6\4‘@,
_and__Federal

S —

ConStitutions Ao eSS~

+abl) SL\QO\WC\SL\? 25 ton Stote cale

law. Were  violeted twhen the Cireadte

O'mol court failed to provide natice

(‘F C\nL} ct the. HQO\f‘inQS held 1 TS

Motrer [/‘)LIV o QS'\“ a bl SL-.e S octuel
FFQJMO\‘Qe—Ar and _H.ese Motions Should

be I‘emc\n_a\éok to_ Ahe trolel ¢

Court. . al-

AAAAA CLO.QQU.Q@.X&\ , | |

WEDER
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ST AA.LJLIYIJLI\I’I‘ OF _ADDITIoONAL CROUND <3

Abvuse of Discretrion In Not Q.C)mP\eJrl ng

A __Meanl nqlwc w) Arw\\u 1S Whether

VA

Teieal Court Elad A\oms e A T48 TMSLFeJrJOr\

_\, L\&‘._m (o HZLA Xude. _court lS ot emD'H M C\

+o K\u\r‘ﬂ}D %"'C\%Qﬁ/lel’ﬁ ot Ac\w\l*lomo\ C,Y‘C‘W\a\S .

2 L 5 =% 1nte _one ‘ma\ij“b\e BLound

tnder OFR Z.% (b) . Claimine theSe 1SSues

NG
cannot ke oaddiesSSed o\o\L 1o qum bemc}

Tile pmore  then one. weal ofter the :Tuc\q)f—‘

_Mnent fomé\ Sentence  became Timal out

be cous e +lhe J&o\\ﬂ)l"’l@ﬂ'k and _ Sentence

TN Al s motter are_not velid on 1tS

face Yhese time boars

are _Not c\‘plplic—
able To  WebersS CaSe

. 3

Under BEW 10,735,090 and 100 3£

_Such oo _Metion or petition 15 Filed

nore thon o yeal aftes the Sudgment

C\nc\ 3@ﬁ+elﬁCQ BP_COMQS -Fgﬂ.gd_) H‘ \5 bO\f\CA

_RS _unt meh_« U lesSs 4 L,‘Q‘ Judament and

Sentence \S invelld on 1S Fo\ce. the

il _Court lacked -

Sucis i c,+\ on.,

of _Fhe ?eh%\om 1S \omSeo\ %O\Q\q on one,
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Of_mofe of the excephions sek

i for it A RCW. 10,723,100 m (G). Bena -

vide z. 160 _\wn. AP P, ok 170,

3.0 T lhe. Court oF AﬂvcodS Qp.z,,,m,j_\ﬂon ok

ey e 1D Cifed  webeS exception ia

S own 0[‘1 10N A4S weber's  Jud lmen +

__cma\ Sentence in this Mu\Hé(‘ e.mains .

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

avelid _on 1S Foce o date.

3.4 The Tia) court oabused 1+s discret —

I (s \ov\ den Y xhq webel 1n 2013 -19 ¢6f an

kcm‘tf’\j in ﬁL‘rS Mo\‘Héf‘) i Whedher e

: W“A‘.TVIC\\ Loult hed o\emco\ ’U\)Q‘OLF s A5

__Mokien_in. 2005 because iweber 15 ach-

nally innecent of the conviction and

—

hes. Submitted an _abundance of evi-

dence 1n_ Fhe Trial Court te prove

WS actruel innocence in FAiS moettern.

<3 5 A Court obuses s discretion when

145 exerciSe tlheceof 1S manifest] Y
I unfeasSonable ot boased  on C‘z CoundS
e thed ace untenecablel an ar \o\ Trary  exs
ercise  of discreb oncu‘t\ authol ‘rc,}
,,,,,,, Lithoud refi ard. Ao (h o\+ ST gt and

€9 wateble under Fhe circumStances

ond itk 1S mot difected Yotard
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o guSt fesalt accerding fo_ fhe

ConsS.Cl ene gt +l.e QO LT Con S'H Jrv\JFQS

. C\b b\gf_ O 'F C\ J S CF6‘|‘ 1 O/’M S + 0\+€f vf QJPCU’\:}'M) et e seeavmn et

A6 wWn. App.. 468, 519 P.2A 26T (197 4),

D6 Tlhe Tria)l court in Wwebers meorion

.

o o nel triel _on Apmi\ 72 2605

_abusSed 1Es dAiScretion ofter Firost R

dafecmi N4 Weber 1n o Metion to f{epfe=
%GM— himself on 12721764 Haed Wit=

nesseS  lewld _be in he(%bormq) Cells
and__on c\Horne\)q Lonld be more £ifed
Yo interview 4hem (Exh. 4 RP 15 o3
18- ZL‘?) u\t’r ol\er/z»)lmcS \,\/e%el‘s Motion. tor
e hew tiel on 4/7 /05 oafter \eamning.
_‘h_«,.lh webels  atlorney Aid. ne investigat -
on 7 and intervielw no  WitneSSeS. (EX\«\

e A-D C‘d Q=45 N 1‘”7) anc._even H’l +he

Eglxc e OF WebersS oOwn. Qo unsel  Stating

"I Hhink_ MF. - Makus Drovm\eo\ yau

A G\SS,SJrchC, of cocmsd (LXL\ ‘7

RP_ 2-3  of G-25).

2.7 In  Weker's <k 7.8 matian Filed

o YWiS _celSe en  S/27/18 +he Triel

Court tailed o Complete Mcammqﬁd
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Az’.)_,c.‘,\l,g\‘,S‘lS of whether e Triel Courd

‘f\&ﬂ'\ C’\b(/\\Seal lJrS A)SCF@’HO/’) ) ULl AN I,

The Court of Appeals deniead Ceviewling .
Whetlier either denial of the rotions

WoS o alownsSe of cz\?% clfetion } o Wal A

H.iS Honeuwrable Coufrt Sitauld SF&nﬁL

\_'C:\/\i‘ét\) \lrﬂ‘ +118  pmatHer c\ccor‘cl\inj]b;‘)%\mo\

eber  (ould  askK _ tHhat dhe Court do So,
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_STATEMENT OFf AJATTIONAL. GReunND 4
I Denied 0f  DISCovery Evidence
Proving ACtusl Innccence .

A The Court OF AP 2 eolS denies Weher
Ce et in_ Fhg 9 Cound. loos ed om e
e FaSC cpinion et Weber tdentifies
I T 16_.63'6&\ aatlhor ] Jr\tj ent HL\\ ng b, 10
R Airscover b\) N_old_of 1S collateral.
ek A 201 ‘?5.,,5. \f.:g wi_ _weker Las mot

0N Y e Jr\ JF led e gal _autherit g LN
CopeCiof Court  out furtther tn the
S‘Jrcﬁ e O kec/ler& ConStitutfions,

Al The State  das oo Continuing o{u\ﬁ}
! 7 =

Yo Aisclose felevont d1SCOvery evi-
hence Yo o deFendant as 1t 18 Ais-
e Covered inder CrB L0 ond e
ro Cig Wt 4o Witheld oot Lot _prove
o defendant o bave deen canvic fed
i Andeer Frra ukO\U\\Q NnY_ CitcumStantesS
| and _test) mMany. i Lk dells  undef SO R

D The Stode. heS been atlare of tlhe

\\\\\\\
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’FC\C'_T\"" Yheot the all eqe A Victim 1n

AN1IS  metlel lf?rjk(\\'p\reo\ i Self ot M,

wWebecs dricl on 2/16/05 Since ot

least 5/5/05 ad the frial of Wehels

C. O~ ('l. e erdh and F A <i() A ATLrMan 01 Q

Pere z.

Cete H04-1-0053%—4 (olwere  the al \ecle e

Victim MoalrkK  Holt Yold o Aifferent

'S%M‘ui obout the mclc)\@,mL G ch

e otmm e Stoate o 0\1>mx%8 e

e Clho( f)( O q} NSt _tlhe 548 rd Co-defen okanJr

o ’@53;;? . Manue)

Gallegos , caSe e~ -

005351 e (,)O.S o ¢t M\m Flie one. o.cC-

o oubed of Ahe asSault

44 _The Stote lod o leqal obligation

)
1.0 ,O{‘ovu;/\e,. che ‘Fpmdfer/ ounsSel tiith

C}\‘iﬁ,\ OV & [”"(,B \/}0} ende 4 rom [e ARy

\rz’;) f‘--/ /;" C

H‘

AN n Lowld n eg ote. defendan {Sj w H

OS . 40 Mﬂg,,owﬁ?em% Ql/\am)eo\ Cebh 4.7

(o3 () (3) () (c) () (),

A4S As Ahe currcend _Sb\d\\CJl ment _ond_Sentence.

N AWLS . meodter oS and Cemailns mm\ .=

o\\o\é’/_);_“.n@&.,& s ’E\O\CIC« \3 Iavelidl  dnd no

:3 U\O\Qj rent 1.5 Finoel

unt) o £inal vealid

Penalty 15 pfo{_:n_a,umng_@;@\w) e court Should
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_not Leve iepeded Mo Webers inveStis

qf«}r o into e Vol mMH of S Cwn.

nviction,. See. CrR 4.7 (W) ()

4, @ ]b econse Fhe curlent Juckgdmﬁww
Sentence o Al s meter oS and fe—

o ™MalnS 1NV, alid _om. Jts face and tlere

e hes been an CtbbU”Lol OmC_,c of I\CLJ)L} D15

C‘.()’V:fﬁf 60\? \//1 (}\ e Ce >u\% Ml 1t eck !n + e

e _} { \ Q‘:-N\ o “ e LO rok ) ’\’L’\Q .\-, © ) 0\1 Cour .]L

obunSed 14S o\\%é\‘e+{c 9\5 Not o(*cker'mgm

the {ebJ(lfWonu ot 4le ol ej(’c)\ Vi1 CtIm

+o__be p\gd\ucul\ in_ 2018 1n_ofder For

e ber%u perfect his 7.% Motlion for

Celiet from ) (A CL\C} e + onder o tual
‘ .

lanotence  Aoctrin e in viclation of
Article. T Section 2 and 3 of 4he WwWoSh—

dogton . State conStitution _an A the 14

S

Amendrieat of Adbe constitution of the

Anited %Jrodrgﬁ G5 Llelner oS o aL\

+o._¢ g Lol _pro te uL on_ 0f Fthe law,

..... 47 DT \/\/e,bef‘ DoSfﬁc,»Slnj_H\e, Fe st €Ny

0% _dle  al equ)\ victim erfk_Holt Foom

1S O | W4 [\ ol r '\&Ct) atesS Ale entire ar =

S

g rent 0f Yhe Sitate AL dhe 18 -/ mony
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.‘m tle Perez  +rie)l Showld bve victualle

the Same, and wowld only have benetitted

”H/\@_m 7.8 Collade ral P focece Ok ;ﬂ(j S n.

1018 ond proven. MU, weber's oactuol

ool Foectue) )’nnocence_) Omo( the Frod

court abusSed 18 diScretion in o\em\j{izw

Weber thot teStimeony ond FhiS matt:

Should e Cemanded form furber pro -

Qe éo\'\nﬂS Ao _on e.\/n\o{e/fﬁ—}_afejf ¢ F/’ncj:

eld hadhe Curdaer f’\r’)LLQFJ AStLCe

4.8 L

went  under odvilerent of e Coult

wWebhe™ oS SincCe +Hhese maters

0f _Appenls gained fle testimony oF
‘‘‘‘‘ . Vold (f'/\]‘\t‘"j?ffd\ Victim) £rom_ the

Perez Ariol and 1t 18 Aiffeaent o

Aacks and Substance, amd M Weber

&

Lok S iled HLis fest mony rﬁ?m +he.

~ , -
1ial 0fF  Perez  CaSe TO04-1-00555-4

o hed Slled unders LS owA CaSe

e v e e by the State , dnd puljured
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ap—

es +\ Moy chr +1qe~ ol cj a( Vi U o MorK

AL Hol )r) o . the Furthherance of

o uskiCe FLiS CoaSen Should be Teman ded
Ao the Fial court for further proleed-
¥al 45 CAS e )5 actu Q{t_”\‘\\j .nno et oF.
the offense he 1S culrently Seatenced
o ldfe Withaut FParcle tof, fo Walla .
LS \lﬂaommjrj Lkherme  nlS. {,‘, ind\ g J ment .
_and__SentenCe. lemainS invalld on.
S Fale  with._an A.,Jr)remﬁ,.ﬂr’ewa(.,\,” Mupdenr
clharge  Serv| 09 s ile Seagnd Strike
bich e Vacated Marceh 275 doo7.
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STATEMENT OF ADDITTONAL GRounds 5

Foilunce To ’Er‘o,pose ConSent Surfzj\
TnS¥tuctional  Error

. 5.1 . Tre court of /-\vP;D ealsS  AiSm i,‘%‘%ﬁnﬂ

Wehers o T uoent 1 tle Mmade~ of

o8 J.Z,uﬁi\) InsStrcuectional EfCCol 1'30\8\@&

on 1S own. onnouncenment ot el

I new Ccuwle 1o Webver T Alhet Caontent
N __Counld _no ‘i’ he _USed _as o def ensSe \Q\{j -
m ) Jncarcerated pef‘% 0SS malk eSS \welbers
S VXY VaaNTaK o 0o him.

5.4 Trn Webkers direct appeal ln tais

Mot e~ Yae Court of APpc’cdb e oted

N NeW _Tule Flhot Consent Could not ke

Wsed oS o defensSe b Y inCarceroded

e PeCSONS CState Ve Weber, 155 P3d 947

(1.007),

55 Tud w@\oers counsSel _at. +r|<« A

0t F 0Se o conSent inStruction do

e ;” vcm bu the court oS or alterna~

+1ve. ()ﬁkc{gms@) +o_ e _asSSault e was

Charyg ed W i, Ghick (Jas. oo Fenable
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RN B (’fﬂfdl\/éd\@{: ensSe ot te Jr) me o+

webe S 4+0ael )n Ao 05 See Mellfiegel Vo

_Tholly G wash 2d. 97, 10% y 417 P.2d 5062

1606),

54 Decause defense coumsel felied only . .
_on_Self defense (nstruction, the jul Y
never heid  Abe O/D,DOF {unl RN +u £ md\ Yhe

defendant not g4 Lt 4 bho ybloy of. _Con—
. Sent ond  faller. Onl\th(m Sidered tubethelr
e had defended  himsSelf or not,
5.5 This neffectiveness oand Failure of

SOR———]

Artial _counsel _ta propoSe. O ComSent el

o Strucetion brouglat tlhe Court  of Appeals

4o Uea cluy. B0 when 1t oanao) j zed Con-—..
o ,‘( N ]
LSeat a8 Webers cJ\e fenSe, because N0

ConSent Indtouetion had bees C(P\/(,ﬂ

Yo e \_\) ULC% to _Adelibherate over, "De —
o Kermdants consStitutional ¢ Lyt Yo A ue

~process Wes potentlally implicated by

-

ﬂ;.\e‘ e \Qg e d\ erfoneous ‘) U\(\q } S+ (\M("—F-—

lan and 0&SUing _There wﬂs o _erfor
n_dhe '\U\ﬁg nSECaetlonsS, A Could _have

Dot L0 o) no‘\ ldenhLiable Cons SQC/LAGI’WQC-S

n _Yhe ‘\*(\\O\\ 2od oa \68\) 174 p.nd 105 (2007).
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b, The Court of A ppe alS odr )3 69.€ 1%

Of 1S opialon Cites +o tlae o plnion

of  Ale Clhief Sudl\c} e.__Gnd Smlp reme.
S P L
Coult CompruSSioner {tom Jood Lt

'Y/‘wo\(’}\. ‘LL\P QOHSC"/?7L" }F)foFM(WL on Bﬁ?c’f‘)

i g e ok Ale drial 0t ould ot Change
the resulf Since Jhe | U\f‘iz\) Tound thed
Wels el c\.SSowx lted M. Held 1+ rejected
biS_ claim.  Of Self o\drenS(_ Ound__Ccon~
Sent 1S5 not. _on _ovailable o\et@ﬂ;e_d
e Completely lgnorin £ the Toct tledt
e pCiof Ao St ate Vo Weber 155 P.%d

.9 4_.,_'1.4.,\,,.,._,,(;,,Lo<3 7) _consent (e o tenable
L oslternative def ense +o_ 085 awlt b[(‘j

Ao incarcerated persans wnich s
Con Se~

EON 'PFO\C'H col _and JdentiFlable
quence to ebers Likert tj T Nnteres+s

AS e 1S5 Servi Ag..a Wfe Without

Vo dhaS et ters under

Porole Seatrence
lavelid ULqu Men Tt and  Sen s

RN : {a Q/_N‘Q\*_hl.:.;&jm,_ ....... )

1ence N o Cose Where -) LS dnsStructl

Could have been oiven oS on oltern— .
ative defenSe . ond this matter~ Showld

Ye i Fion For e lews — ]

*—p
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e be femanded f o P ucther procee oL ;n\F)S
5.7

CThe _Trial Qou\mL obused 1S Aiscpedt-

lon dn_HuS matter bu not QOM/) le.+1 ny

Q. macmifm-{:mi OmokluﬂfS Cm‘: tle

,,,,,,, fFCIPOL/Lrw{
f‘uﬁwc cts. of ALiS {m}v\r‘e of counsel

tohicl  TeSulted ln- o new fule loe, m\cj -
e G20 Qm.'ﬁi”\,"ﬂ C(l(J\ 1 Ll o P?el Z </1+ CoQu it
. o\nﬁ\ {(em an 4. Shau OL he  ore er g’()( AL COFU&‘
Fomal
S ij\:} e,
)
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YV indictive Proselution

.1 The CY[Ad\omwﬁ and __Sentence N

HAls WXMH(’/\‘CC/\PFGVW'}‘\(\ CemoinsS 1N—

Volld on 11S foace I“"}C\\‘,\_vj,_k?;_.% lhe entife
CONVIC Y oN open 1o collatere] atack

lnc\ unllil e émg:o\l\u Vel el \Mcﬁm(’n’r

¢

el bheen F(Dno\c’(\eol +lae V\,Mdcj\ﬂ’?émi | ]
open __to  Collatecal adtack oan ol __the

Triol Court erfed ond abusSed 11

discretion 1n Ye moaHer of weber's

COP 7,2 tations Liled jn  Jold

tn_not Condueting o Measningtul

, J
ol u%i% ot  the Ffacts praseszred\)

5 QN H,o. court of Appeals has cleal \\uj\

.@(,\VGJ\ wj Aen ‘j n% weber Ceview in
1S rettel ond Aot Femamftfnj e

o Se roi‘ oNA e\ O)\@/ij LA U} e o\ruﬂc\ onN
A

. j{;.l."\uo Mef I* S ~ —

Q 1 The Shote in 4hs  roetter relied on

—l\/«ej\, !ommc)a er”cew}\ wse d b \//e,bcff‘ cw”\d\

WS o cell modr@,% o 3&& Hae _alle 9 el
o

e
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_victien, Mark _Melt Yo /ehers cell
_Sinte. fhe Opening State r?e/ﬂ+5+wom\6}%

e States ol O&.},,f;aﬂm,m‘ g.urnen + 5. ye + IS

o Cunsed Of not _onl Yo fv[p \b)mo Fhe o) leg, eJ\

o {:Q\ QQ, bu\jr
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o dendant e WAS _acdtu \(/\ f(Jqu,J aC-

,,,,, woes also false) Y .OCCuSe e

—

ot \O\Mmcm\q N C}Jr\mg, 108+ attack.

The Siede felled on this. force bnein 9

used b Y % rmen Yo oaetr Yhe o Ieﬁ,ﬁgvo\ VAL

. Jr m. JFO the dete /e 0\ antSs cell ‘\_.N,.q NS g /De [
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. A_,wj “Shank] )W(IA{ZL 0. ‘HAFQ(AJG/U flae First
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ed) Yo ASe A ]ov\ Ja >€/>Lu Manuel Gallegol
(Exh. 14 0f SA.Go PP 17(- 9% test -
- o040t Mark  Hol Jr). AlSa See Court e~
Cotd ot Alemissal of ch arges 09 alnsy
Goll €q.0.5 , LaSe P04 12005551, Tndex™45,




The State Continued to (el Y00 this

torce . \PML\J S ed JH«FO(AOJ%OM% the Frial

o\\fj\mmﬂr veber _and into cloSi g /\r3M~
Ments (Exih, 15 . cjosujﬂ X ﬂmﬂwn+% S.A. ()

%¢+ 7LL1 S’f’O\‘f’Q O&i S Sg( 0{ 'H/\Q Ll’\O\rCi es -

against the principle defendant (,qua

eS ocluSed of both. +he $orce and

The principle assawlt, Whyl

by \/\/‘m/)\ wonld . the State Aismiss e

(‘;\nc\f\q@S C&cjo\‘m%%- the odefeqdant Who
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In the Office of the Clerk of Court
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IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

'DIVISION THREE
STATE OF WASHINGTON, y
) " No. 36570-1-111

Respondent, )

: )

V. )
CHARLES WALTER WEBER, ) UNPUBLISHED OPINION

‘ )

Appellant. )

SIDDOWAY, J. — Ten yearé after his judgment and sentence for a prison assault
became final, aﬁd after dismissal of one personal restraint peﬁtioh as frivoloﬁs‘, Charles
Webef filed a series of motions in the trial court in an effort to obtain a new trial. We
éfﬁrm the trial court’s dismissél of the motions.

,

FACTS AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND .
Prior criminal proceedings

In February 1999, Charles Weber entered a plea of guilty of assault in the second
' p

~

degree in King Couhty Superior Court and was sentenced to a.term of total confinement
of 29 months.

In July 2003, he was found guilty in a jury trial of attempted murder in the secon&
degree and ﬁssault in the first degree, among other charges, again in King County. It was

agreed by the parties that convictions on both the attempted murder and assault charges
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violated double jeopardy, so the trial court vacated the conviction for the assaull charge.
It was the State’s position that since the assault charge carried the longer standard

sentence range, it was the conviction that should stand. The State sought review of that

issue by the Washington Supreme Court.
A little over a year after he was sentenced for his 2003 crimes, while serving his
time at the Washington State Penitentiary, Mr. Weber was charged with committing a

second degree assault of another inmate. Mr. Weber and the other inmate, Mark Holt,

—

became involved in a dispute during a prison softball game. The following day, after the
inmates {inished cating lunch, Myr. Weber and Mr. Holt fought in Mr. Weber’s cell. As

later summarized by this court: .
There was a dispute as to whether Mr. Holt went to Mr. Weber’s cell
voluntarily to fight him, or whether Mr. Holt was taken there by force. Mr.

Holt insisted that the inmates cornered him in the cell and began beating
him.

. At trial, Mr. Weber admitted to fighting with Mr. Holt. He also
admitted that he struck the first blows. However, Mr. Weber stated that
Mr. Holt had agreed to'come to Mr. Weber’s cell to fight and that the two
‘had engaged in mutual combat.

4

State v. Weber, 137 Wn. App. 852, 855-56, 155 P.3d 947 (2007) (Weber 111). Mr. Weber
was {ound guilty following a jury trial. Because the prison assault was his third most
A

serious offense, Mr. Weber was sentenced in April 2005 as a persistent offender, to life in

prison without the possibility of parole. After his motion for a new trial was denied, he
appealed.
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Two months after the Walla Walla Superior Court imposed the life without parole
sentence for his 2004 prisbn assault, Diviéion One of this court decided the appeal of Mr.
Weber’s sentence for his 2003 crimes. It agreed with the State in-a published decision
that when double Jjeopardy requires vacating one of two convictions, the conviction with
the shorter standard sentence is the “lesser offense” that should be vacated. State v.
Weber, 127 Wn. App. 879, 888, 112 P.3d 1287 (2005) (Weber 1). The Supreme Court
accepted _review, and affirmed. State v. Weber, 159 Wn.2d 252,269, 149 P.3d 646
(2006) (Weber II). In March 2007, the King County Superior Court entered an arhended
judgment and sentence that reinstated Mr. Weber’s conviction for first degree assault at
the éame time it Va‘cated the c;)nvictior\l for attempted secpnd degree murder.

A month later, this court decided Mr. Weber’s appeal of his conviction for the
prison assvault. Mr. Web;:r had' complained in part that he received ineffective assistance
of counsel When-his irial lawyer failed to interview two witnesses. One witness, J ermine |
Mercado, was a friend and cellmate of victim Holt. In an affidavit offered as support
when Mrb. Weber moved for a new trial, Mr. Mercado stated that Mr. Holt had been
untruthful in his account of the assa/ult and had been a willing participant in the fight.

In a published opinion, this court agreed that Mr. Weber might have received
deficient repfesentation when his trial lawyer failed to interview the witnesses without a
satisfactory explanation. Weber I1I, 137 Wn. App. at 858. Turning to the actual

{

prejudice required to demonstrate ineffective assistance of counsel,; however, this court
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pbsei'Vcd that consent—while historically a defense to assault—was now disfavored as a
defense, at least in some contexts. This court held as a matter of first impression that
consent is not a defense to a charge of second degree assault between two incarcerated

- persons. Id. at 860. Since Mr. Webcr could not demonstrate the prejudice pmﬁg ol his
inetfective assistance of counsel claim and presented no other error, his conviction was
zi‘lﬂrmcd. Mr. Weber sought review by the Supreme Court, which was denied. This
court issued its mandate in April 2008, i

In a timely personal restraint petition (PRP) filed in November 2008, Mr. Weber

N

raised a new claim of incffective assistance of counsel. See Order Dismissing Pers.

Restraint Petition, In re Pers. Resiraint of Weber, No. 27530-2-111 (Wash. Ct. App. July

2, 2009). With supporting witness affidavits, including an affidavit from Mr: Holt
recanting his trial testimony and asserting that he, rather than Mr. Weber threw the first
punch, Mr. Weber argued that trial counsel failed to warn him of problems presented by

pursuing a trial strategy of consent. The chief judge of this court dismissed the PRP in

July 2009, holding that it was not unreasonable for Mr. Weber’s trial lawyer to defend on i
a theory of consent and self-defense. The chief judge observed that “[a]lthough Mir.

Weber admitted he threw the first punch, he claimed that the other inmate charged into
\

his cell with the intent to fight,” and “landing the first blow might be viewed as a
reasonable way to avoid injury.” Id. at 3. Our chief judge also observed that consent had

traditionally been considered a defense to assault, and Mr. Weber’s trial lawyer

S 4
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“reasonably relied on t;aditional consent cases and did not anticipate the ruling in Weber
[III].” Id. at 4. The‘ dismissal order observed that none of Mr. Weber’s supporting
affidavits were helpful to him, because most simply supported the theory of consent
rejected on appeal and Mr. Holt’s new claim that he threw the first punch “contradicts
Mr. Weber’s own testimony and therefore is insufficient to show prejudice.” Id. at 4 n.1.

Mr. Weber sought discretionary review of dismissal of his PRP by the Supreme
Court, whose commissioner denied review in October 2009. Ruling Denying Review, In
re Pers. Restraint of Weber, No. 83398-2 (Wash. Oct. 16, 2009). The commissioner’s
ruling agreed that the affidavits filed by Mr. Weber in supp-ort of his PRP were unhelpful
because they merely “support the untenable theory that the victim entered the fray
voluntarily and thus consented to the assault. And the victim recantation is highly
dubious because it contradicts Mr. Weber’s claim that he, and not the victim, threw the
first punch.” Id. at 2.

Current proceedings

In July 2018, Mr. Weber filed a pro se “CrR 7.8 Motion for Evidentiary Hearing”
in the Walla Walla County Superior Court, arguing that when his 2003 conviction for
attempted murder was vacated, it “voided” his persistent offender status and rendered his
judgment and sentence facially invalid. Clerk’s Papers (CP) at 71-73.

On August 6, Mr. Weber was transported to superior court for what had been sel

as a hearing on his CrR 7.8 motion. At the outset of the hearing, the State explained that
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it had drafted but not filed a response to the motion because it was awaiting a certified
copy of the original and amended King COLLnfy j udgmgnt and sentences for the 2003
convictions, which it was sure the court would want to see. It oi“l’eréd a response brief for
filing during the hearing, in which it argued that because Mr. Weber’s 2003 conviction
for first degree assault was reinstated when his attembled sécond degree murder
conviction was vacated, he had two most serious offense convictions when sentenced in
Walla Walla. The State suggested thﬂ the hearing be continued so that Mr. Weber would
~ have a chance to reply. The court, the Honorable Scott Wollram, agreed. Mr. Weber
took the opportunity at the hearing to serve and file the following additional pro se

motions:

- August 6,2018  Motion for Continuance and Transfer to Walla Walla County

August 6,2018  Motion for Appointment of Counsel

~

August 6, 2018 Motien for Transcripts from Co-defendant’s Trial be Produced
\ by the State

e later filed the following additional motions: : )

August 16,2018 Motion for Appointment of Counsel (Amended)
August 16,2018 Motion for Continuance of Hearing

August 16,2018 Aménded Motion to Produce Transcripis of Co-defendant’s
Trial under CrR 7.8(b)(2)

August 22,2018  Motion to Submit Evidence of Actual Innocence 7.8 (b)2)
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~ Some of these motions revived Mr. Weber’s complaints that when tried for the

presented. Mr. Weber also argued that the State’s case against him was substantially

premised on its contention that his cellmates, Joseph Galiegos and Edgar Perez, forced

Mr. Holt into the cell where Mr. Holt was assaulted, yet Mr. Perez was tried separately
“for his involvement and was acquitted, and the charges against Mr. Gallegos were later

dropped. He argued that newly discovered evidence demonstrated his actual innocence,

| entitling him to a new trial.

On August 30, the State filed a response to these new arguments. It argued that
Mr. Weber ﬁad relied on affidavits challenging the evidence presented in his trial in his
2005 motion for a new trial of the prison assault charge, his appeal, and his 2008 PRP;
that none of his evidence was newly discovered; and thatwthis court had found the
affidavits on which Mr. Weber relied unhelpfui to his legal arguments. -

On September 4, Mr. Weber Was:agai_rl transported to superior court for a hearing.

When he explained that he had filed a reply brief that he had sent out the night before,

Jud.ge Wolfram said he would take Mr. Weber’s motions under advisement and rule after

v
1

reviewing Mr. Weber’s reply.
On September 19, Judge Wolfram.sent a letter to Mr. Weber and the deputy
prosecuting attorney assigned to the matter, stating he had reviewed “the pending

motions filed by Mr. Weber,” the parties’ briefing, and the cases c\ited and was going to

.

-
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/
deny “all motions filed by Mr. Weber,” “basing its decision on the State’s briefing.”

CP at 359. He directed the State to present an order.
[

Belore entry of an order, Mr. Weber moved on September 27 for reconsideration.

Between September 27 and October 3, he filed the following additional motions:

September 27,2018 Motion to Terminate Legal Financial Obligations

October 3, 2018 Motion to Stay Previous Motion for Reconsideration
Pending Receipt of Official Order

Oclober 3, 2018 ‘Motion to Produce Transcripts of Mark A. Holt from -
Trial of Perez

October 3, 2018 Motion for a New Trial Under CrRR 7.8, Additional
Grounds for Relief

On October 15, 2018, Mr. Weber was transported to superior court for
prcseﬁtmem by the State of the order it had been directed to prepare. Judge Wolfram
signed the pm}t)osed ordér denying motions for new trial and for evidentiary hedring and
for other relietf.

On October 19, Mr. Weber filed a pro se petition for writ of habeas corpus ad
subjiciendum with the Walla Walla County Superior Court. s'ee Initiation Petition, /n re
Pers. Restraint of Weber, No. 36426-7-111 (Wash. Ct. App. Nov. 9, 2018). Unlike prior
motions he had filed under the case number for the prison assault prosecution, he did not
include a case-file number on this petﬁion. It was reviewed by the Honorable John

Lohrmann, who entered an order transferring it to the Court of Appeals for consideration
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as a PRP. The matter was opened in this court aé a PRP and was assigned case no.
36426-7-111. | |
| Retﬁming to the prison assault.case, on Oétobér 24, Mr. Weber filed a motion to
order response from the State and schedule motion hearing, asking that a response be
or?iered to his legal ﬁnanciél obligation (LFO) and new trial motions filed with the court
on October 3. The motion also complained that he had received no State response to his
motion for the production of transcripts of the testimony of Mr. Holt in the Perez trial.
The State filed a response to Mr. Weber’s motion to terminate his LFOs on
November 6. Also on November 6, Mr. Weber filed a motion to vacate judgment, in
- which he complained that the State had failéd to give him advance noti(‘:e of the August 6, |
September 4, and October 15 hearings on his motions. He ‘also filed motions for an order
of indigency, an order autho\rizing appeal at public expense, and appointment of counsel.
The State did not respond to many of the motions Mr. Weber filed after the

motions dismissed on October 15. On December 24, when Mr. Weber’s case was

evidently on the court calendar (Mr. Weber was not present) the prosecu'tor explained to

Judge Wolfram that the later motions “were the same nature, same issues” and “further
responses . . . would have been acts of futility on the State’s behalf.” Report of
Proceedings (RP) (Dec. 24, 2018) at 13. At the trial court’s direction that the State file a

“brief paragraph response to what you just indicated,” the State filed a response to what it
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{ .
characterized as Mr. Webet’s “subsequent motions” on December 31. RP (Dec. 24,
2018) at 13; CP at 425-26. |

On'January 4, 2019, the acting chief judge of this court entered an order in case

no. 36426-7-11L, the CrR 7.8 motion that had been transferred on the order of Judge

Lohrmann. The order dismissed Mr. Weber’s PRP as frivolohs. It. explaivne‘d_tha-; _since“
l\/h Weber filed h>is petition more than a year after his judgment and sentence became
[inal, it was untimely unless it fell within an exception to the ti_meliﬁ,ess recyllirelnel1t.
Ondu Disinissing ]I’ers. Restraint ]Petition,_ulf; re P'ers. @?S_’!i'_?’,"ﬂ?}_‘.’f WeberNo ;36‘4'-26—-7.-111
(Wash. C1. App-an. 4. 2019). 1t recognized hat M. Weher limed his selence was
facially invalid and the seq_i:enc‘qi}\f}pﬁoscd was in excess of the court’s jurisdiction u_hder
conviction was reinstated at the same time his 2003 attempted murder conviction was
vacated, he “sill qualifies s  persistent offender under RCW 9.94A.030(38)" and “[1Jhe

sntence imposed is notunlewful. Order, Weber, No. 36426711, at 34,

A On January 7; 2019, a hearing was c)onducted by Judge Wolfram at which the
State and Mr. Weber were present. The prosecutor reminded the trial court that it had
previously denied Mr. Weber’s pro se motions and, whilé Mr. Weber had since filed
additional motions, the prosecutor argued, “We would be asking the Court to .dcny the

subsequent motions because they are . . . essentially the same nature and scope of his

previous motions.” RP (Jan. 7,2019) at 15. Judge Wolfram commented that a decision

10
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had also just come down from the Court of Appeals dismissing Mr. Weber’s PRP® as
frivolous. Judge Wolfram entéred an order dismissing Mr. Weber’s “motions for relief
. made in September, October and November of 2018, based on those motions being
repetitive in nature and scope of his previous motions which this Court denied formally
on October 15.” CP at 427. Mr. Weber timely appealed. An order of indigency was
entered by the trial court and this court appointed counsel.

Mr. Weber timely sought discretionary review of this court’s order dismissing his
second PRP.

ANALYSIS

A motion for reliet from judgment under the superior court criminal rule, like a
personal restraint petition, is subject to RCW 10.73.090 (one year time limit), .100
(exceptions to the time limit), and .140 (subsequent petitions). CrR 7.8(b). If such a
motion or petition is filed more than a year after the judgment and sentence became final,
it is barred as untimely unless the judgment and sentence is invalid on its face, the trial
court lacked competent jurisdiction, or the petition is based solely on one or more of the
exceptions set forth in RCW 10.73.100(1)-(6). See In re Pers. Restraint of Benavidéz,
160 Wn. App. 165, 170, 246 P.3d 842 (2011) (addressing timeliness of a petition).

Mr. Weber’s counsel on appeal makes two assignments of error: that the trial

~ court’s perfunctory dismissal” of Mr. Weber’s CtR 7.8(b) motion deprived him of the

opportunity to effectively argue that his life without parole sentence should be reversed,

11
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and that his constitutional right to due process was violated when the State tailed to
provide notice that at the time of sentencing, it would seek a sentence of life without -
)
paroie. Br. of Appellant at 1. We address the alleged errors in the order presented.
I MR. WEBER’S PERSISTENT OFFENDER SENTENCE IS NOT INVALID
Whether Mr. Weber’s life without parole sentence as a per 1¢;lcm offender became
unlawful when his 2003 conviction for attempted murder was vacated was squarely
presented in his PRP that this court dismissed as frivolous in our case no. 36426-7-11. At
the time Mr. Weber filed his opening brief in this appeal, the Supreme Court had not yet
acted on his motion for discretionary review of the PRP’s dismissal, but the Supreme
Court commissioner entered a ruling denying review in July 2019. Largely paralleling
our acting chicef judge’s analysis, the commissioner stated: -
[R]egardless of the vacation of Mr. Weber’s attempted second degree
murder conviction, he still has two prior convictions Tor strike olfenses—
om for first degree assault and one for second degree assault—making him
a pcmalcm ‘offender in rclat;on to his current conviction. Former RCW
9. 94/\ 030(32)(&) (2002) Whlle tcchmcally Mr Webu S wrrml 111(,
(.,mcncc is invalid (o the extent it rests in part on a vacated prior

convncuon any facial error does not prejudice Mr. Weber because under his
correct cr 1muml hlstmy hc Lcmams a pcrsmcnl of] 1cnder lor whmh a .

semwcmg rdxci See Inre Pem Reslramt of Fmstad 177 Wn.2d 501
506,301 P.3d 450 (2013) (even where facial error is ‘shown, pctmoncr is

( cnlltlcd to relief only if petitioner was dctually and substantially prejudiced
by conslllutlolml error or a nonconstnlullondl error r(-:sulled in a complete
Iniscarriage oflumcc) .

12
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Ruling Denying Réview, In re Pers. Restraint of Weber, No. 96749-1, at 2-3 (Wash. July
24, 2019) (footnotes omitted). A motion to modify the commissioner’s ruling was
denied. Order, In re Pers. Rgstraint of Weber, No. ?6749-1 (Wash. Oct. 3, 2019).

Mf. Weber’s counsel continues to press the argument that when Mr. Weber’s
attempted murder convictién was vacated, it‘ eliminated the basis for his l.ife without
‘parole sentence despite our acting chief judge’s order and the"Su)preme Court
commissioner’s ruling denying review. Neither he nor the prosecutor has briefed the
significance (or not) of those rulings on the identical issue raised in this appeal. We
assume withoui deciding that this panel is not bound by our acting chief judge’s decision
~ or the reasoning of the Supreme Court com;nissioner in denying review. “We agree With
arid adopt the reasoning of both decisions, however, Mr. Weber may hav‘e\ demonstrated
an error in the 2005 judgment and sentence. But— in this collateral attack, he is required to
do inore than that; he is required to demonstrate that his sentence is unlawful. He has not
deménstrated thatitis. 7

~

II.  WE WILL NOT REVIEW THE NEW DUE PROCESS CHALLENGE RAISED FOR THE FIRST
TIME ON APPEAL B -

The second error assigned by appointed counsel is a new issue not raised in the
\

trial court nor, for that matter, in any of Mr. Weber’s motions in the trial court: Mr.

Weber argues his séntence must be. vacated because he was not given notice, when

13
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prosecuted for his prison assauit,‘ that at the ti;ne of sentencing the State woulh seek a
sentence of life without parole. We decline to consider-the issue. See RAP 2.5(a).!
STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL GROUNDS

[n a pro se statement of additional grounds (SAG), Mr. Weber raises cight. Five
of the cight sulter from a common infirmity and are considered (ogether.

SAG [: Failure to appoint counsel. Mr. Weber contends the trial court abused its
discretion by not appointing counsel to-represent him in connection with his Crﬁ 7.8
motions. A defendaﬂ does not have a right to counsel whea his CrR 7.8 moti\(;n fails to
establish grounds for relief and is dismissed without a hearing on the merits. State v.
Robinson, 153 Wn.2d 689, 696-97, 107 P.3d 90 (2005). The right to counsel arises only
a ﬁ'er. the court determines the motion has merit. Id. Because there was no hearing on the
merits, Mr. Weber did not have a right to counsel.

SAG 2: Denial of hearing. Mr. Weber conten:ds the trial court abused its
discretion when it failed to provide notice and the opportunity to be heard on his CrR 7.8

motions. “If[a CrR 7.8 motion] does not establish grounds for relief, the judge may

dismiss the petition or deny the motion without a hearing on the merits.” Id. at 696.

’ f
/

I"The State invites us to reach the issue, arguing that the: Washinglon Supreme
Court rejected the same argument in State v. Crawford, 159 Wn.2d 86, 96, 147 P.3d 1288
(2006) (holding that the Persistent Offender Accountability Act, RCW 9.94A.570, does
not require notice nor is notice constitutionally required).

14
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SAG 4: Denial of discovery. Mr. Weber complains that he was denied discovery
that he sought in aid of his collateral attack. He cites CrR 4.7, which appears in T'itle 4 of -
the Superior Court Criminal Rules, entitled “Procedures Prior to Trial.” Mr. Weber
identifies no legal authority e:ntitling> him to dilscovery in aid of a collateral attack vin 2018.

SAG 3 and 5 throitgh 8: Matters ineligible for rélief under CrR 7.8(b). “[Tlime
and manner” limitations are imposed on collateral review, including review requested by
a motion under CrR 7.8(b). Stc;te\y. Brand, 120 Wn.2d 365, 369, 842 P.2d 470 (1992).

As earlier observed, a moEion for relief from judgment uﬁder the superior court criminal
rule, like a personal restraint petition, is subject to RCW 10.73.090 and .100. If sucha
motion or petition is filed more than a year after the judgmeﬁt and sentence becaine final,
it is barred eis untimely unless the judgment and sentence is invalid on its face, the trial
court lacked competent jurisdiction, or the petition is based solely on one or more of the
exceptions set forth in RCW 10.73.100(1)-(6). Benavidez, 160 Wn. App. at 170.

7 A motion for relief from judgment under the rule is also subject to RCW
10.73.140\. CrR 7.8(b). That statute provides that “[i]f a person has previously filed a
petition for personal restraint, the court of appeals will not consider the pétition unless the
person certifies that he or she has not filed a previous petition bn similar grounds, and
shows good cause why the petitioner did not raise thé new grounds in the previous
petition.” RC';N 10.73.140. Although the statute literally applies only to the filing of a

subsequent PRP, the Supreme Court held in Brand that RCW 10.73.140 “appl[ies] by

15
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analogy” to CrR 7.8(b) motions, and “[t]o hold otherwise would thwart the legisla,tiVe
purpose by a.El(>w§n1g repetitious collateral attacks in the trial courts in contravention of
the policy limiting collateral review.” 120 Wn.2d at 370. .

A collateral attack by motion iﬁ the trial court is also subject to the general

prohibition against successive attacks that are embodied in the doctrines of claim and
,

issue preclusion. In re Pers. Restraint of Bec\ker, 143 Wn.2d 491, 497, 20 P.3d 409

(2001). |

Mr. Weber’s motions in the trial court were brought many years after his judgment
and sentence for the prison assaultibegame ﬁmﬂ, and after his 2008 PRP. The rcmaining '
prounds identified in his SAG fail under the time and manner limitations on collateral
review.

Mr. Weber’s challehge to the trial court’s refusal to‘rf-cvisit thA«: denial of his 2005
motion {or a new trizﬂ (SAG 3), a denial that was afﬁrmed on appe(al, is barred by law of |
the case doctrine.

He contends that his trial lawyer provided ineffective assistance of counsel by
failing to request a jury instruction on his defense of consent. He argues in SAG 5 that if
the jury had been instructed on the defense of consent, he would have been acquitted,
avoiding this court’s announcement of the new rule in Weber I11 that the defense is
unavailable to incarcerated persons. This contention fails on multiple gf()txnds; Mr.

Weber makes only a bald, conclusory argument that the defense, which failed even

16
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though argued to the jury, would have succeeded if addressed by an instruction. He
provides no “good cause” why this claim of ineffective assistance of counsel was not
raised in his 2008 PRP. He does not identify effective relief that we can grant, since the
unavailability of the defense is now settled and would control in the event of a new trial. |
Mr. Weber challenges the denial of his motion for a new trial based on the
evidence that led to the acquittal and dismissal of charges against his cellmates,
characterizing it as “evidence newly-discovered.” (SAG 6 and 8). “[I]n the context of
‘newly discovered evidence,’ a collateral attack is based on ‘similar grounds’ unless the
current evidence is significantly different in either quantum or quality from the evidence
presented in a previous collateral attack.” Brand, 120 Wn.2d at 370. The State
demonstrates that the evidence on which Mr. Weber relies does not meet this standard.
And as the chief judge and Supreme Court commissioner observed in addressing Mr.
Weber’s 2008 PRP, it also would not change the result, since the jury found that Mr.
Weber assaulted Mr. Holt, it rejected his claim of self-defense, and consent is not an
available defense.?
Mr. Weber contends the trial court abused its discretion when if denied his motion

to vacate his LFOs (SAG 7) because there was inadequate inquiry into his current or

2 Mr. Weber represents in the motions below that in his 2005 trial, he “took the
blame for his own fight from the beginning, excluding Mr. Perez and Mr. Gallegos as
being involved.” CP at 180.
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future ability to pay. But Blazina® error is not exempt from the one-year time bar for

collateral altacks. In re Pers. Restraint of Flippo, 187 Wn.2d 106, 111,385 P.3d 128

(2016); RCW 10.73.100(6).

Dismissal of Mr. Weber’s 2018 motions is atfirmed.
A majority of the panel has determined this opinion will not be printed in the
Washingion Appellate Reports, but it will be filed {or public record pursuant to RCW

2.06.040.

57%;40 Watse. A C/’”

Siddoway, A.C.J

Wi CONCUR:: ‘ b

Fearing, J.

4: / Foal g, ;«‘3 \:‘ﬁ &:5;7”(47'“"
Kmsmo FP T. :

3 State v. Blazina, 182 Wn.2d 827, 344 P 3d 680 (2015).

* Judge Kevin M. Korsmo was a member of the Court of Appeals at the time
argument was held on this matter. He is now serving as a judge pro tempore of the court
pursuant to RCW 2.06.150. '
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MARK HOLT, I called as a witness in

’ ' behalf of the Plaintiff,
being first duly sworn by
the Court, testified as
follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. ACOSTAE

Sir, would yQu:pleaselstate your name and spell ybur_last
name for the record? o
Mark Holt, H-o-l-t.

And where are you currently residing?

Washington State Penitentiary.

Okay. Were you there September 2 and 3 of last year?

Yes.

»What-part of the prison were you housed in at that time?

6 ﬁing.

6 wing, which cell?
E-3. o

Okay._ Evfier, cell 32

Yeah.

Okay. At that time, did you know any iﬁmates by the name

of Charles oerhristopher Weber?

Yes. | * . 7

Okay. ‘How long had you known them, if at all?

Not loné.

Okay. -Any association with themvby yourself personally

or —-—-
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'No.

Other than that they reside there as well?

No, no.

Okay. Do you recall where -- Prior to anything happening

- on September 2nd, did you know where they lived?

-

Yeah.

Qkay.’ Were they on‘the same,tier as you?

Yes.

Okay.  On Septembe; 2, would you tell the jury what you
were inng and kind of make-it speqific? ‘Are you allowed
to play spdrts, ybu know, have recreation there‘at'the
prison? | |
Yes.

On the 2nd, were you engaging in some recreational activiﬁy

that day?

Yes.

Wﬁat was that?

Softball.

Okay. And who was playing it} inmates, officgfs?

Inmates. |

Okay; Just strictly inmates?

Yeah.

Okay. And the teams, you know, is it just first come.first
Serve,-you get on teams or are they p:ettyAstrﬁctured

teams?
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You make your own teams.

Okay. That day you were playing softball in the morning?
afterhoon? -

In the afternoon. . -

Okay. Would you teli the jury what happened  in particulai
With you involving another inmate by the'name of |
Christophef Weber?

Well, he —-- he ran me{over while wé.Was playing basebéll.

I was going for a double play. He ran mé oﬁer.. And then T
talked to the umpires and they said that they -- that they ~
ain't goiﬁg to dé it, ainft going to call it like it was:
supposed to bé called, so.I - - | o .
Let's back up. So you were playing out in the field?

Yeéh. | | | |

What position? - S S

"Shortstop.:

Okay. When you éay Christopher Weber fan'you over, he was
running the bases then?

Yeah. |

Okay. Okay. So you talked to the umpires, nothing

happened. What happened next?

Well, I had said something out of line, but I apologized at

the end of the game. I apologized and they said that you

can't apologize for that.

Okay. Let's backup. Okay. You said that you said
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something eut of line. What did you say and who to?
I said, "I'1l1l just throw up an elbow if he runs me over.
again.”

Who did you say that to?

T just said it out loud.

Okay. ©Oh, to nobody in particular?

' No.

Loud enough for anybody to hear there ih the field?
Yeah. |
Okay. Any response to that at that time?
Yeah. |
What was the responee?‘ '
Chris Weber said, "Go ahead and try.;—

MR. MAKUS: Your Henor, I'm going to object as to what
Chris Weber said as'beihg hearsay.
- THE .COURT: What is it belng offered for°

MR. ACOSTA: To lay a foundatlon of why what happened on
the follow1ng day happened

THE COURT: 1It's not being offered for the truth ef the
matter?

MR. ACOSTA: No.

THE COURT: I'll overrule the.objection. Go ahead.
Okay. What was the response?

He said you -- he said, "Go ahead and try it. Go ahead and .

_try to throw up an elbow."
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It's two people.

o0 » o >

‘Okay. Anything further prior té your apology then =-

No.
——- on that line?

No. ; _ .

.Okay. When and where did you attempt this apology?

Right after the game on the field.

’Okay.v And --

On the baseball field.

Okay. .Did you approach him of were‘you two in the same
vicinity, how did that happen? Expléin.

We was all on fhe fiéld‘together. I walked over and said,

ﬁHey,bman,‘I‘apologize. I was out of line." And fhey

said —-

Who is they? Is it one person saying or several people

saying this?

Okay. Who were the two people?
- . K .

Charles Weber and Chfis Wéber. .

Okay.

They said, "You can't. You can't." They said, "You can't
apologize for something like that.a

Okay. Was that all they séid?

Well, and then they started talking among theirselves.
Okay. Did you do anything further at that time?

No. I walked away.
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‘Okay. The following day, I'm going to start around the -

noon hour. Did you have lunch that day?

Yes.
Lo \
When is lunch for you?

Well, it's rotating every day so —--

‘Okay. When was lunch for you that day?

Around 12 o'clock.

Okay. Wheﬁ did you finish lunch?

Around 12:15.

Okay. What did yéu ~-~ -And wheh you eat lunch, are you in
aAbig cafeteriarof - |

Yes.

With'oﬁher inmates?

Yes.

Okay. When you finished lunch, what did you do?

When I finished'lunch, I went back to the unit.

Okayi Td'your cell?

Well,vI was going.to go to my cell.

Okay. VDidvyou go by yoursélf.or when you left the lunch
hall or --

Yeah, I was byAmyselfﬁ

Okay..

Fromvmy.house.

Okay. What I want you to do is describe now, you know,

what happened when you left the lunch hall.
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I was walking back to the unit, When.I got up on thei
beginning of the tier where I live, Weber, Charles Weber
came up with his twé cellies and they told me that I'm
going to their house no matter what.

Okay. And when you say cellies, that's a term for
celiﬁates? |

Yeah..

Okay. - And when you saylhouse, is that the prisoh term for
your ceil? ’

Well, yeah.

House is your cell?

Yes. -

Where was 1t that they confronted you or met you?
Right at the beginning of the tier. i

Okay. Where the number bne cell would be?

No. 1It's right outside.number one cell on the tier, then
right outside you stand there and wait for them to open the
gate to get onto tﬁé tier.

Okay. Okay. So you are before you get to the cells ‘then,
the main landing,nis that ahother term for it or --

AV QU Iy
lredil.

Showing you what has been admitted as Exhibit Number 21, do
you recognize what that is supposed to be showing?
Yeah. It's right -- you come in right there.

Okay.
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Up at the top. Right out there, fhere's gates to get to
where you get on the waitihg thing for the tier, then right
in this area.

Hold on. Okay. With the Court's permission, I would ask
you to turn it the other way so the jurors can see where
the location is where you were when you were met by thése
bther_inmates.

You come up thé‘stairs. It's three tiers high. 2And you
come in thét little area. You wait right here. Then you
come in right there for the\tier. And then they escorted
me all the way down here. My house 1is right'here. . They
escorted.me down to E-16. |

Okay. Now, before they escorted you, what exactly was
said? |

They said, "You are going to our house."

Okay. Did one person say that or all three of them say it?
Well, one pérson said it.

Who was that?

‘Perez.

Okay. . And did you make any response?
No.
Why not?

Because I was scared.

‘Okay. Did any of the other two say anything in that same

time frame or just Perez said, "You are going to our

HOLT - DIRECT 177
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house"?

Just Perez.

Anything else said?

No.

Okay. So you're béing escorted down the tier. Were there
any other inmates walking aloﬁg there at that time?

Yes. | | |

Okay. Any other officers Walking along there at that fime?

No.

_ ' ' ‘i ' o
Did you attempt to call out for help in any way?

When I was in the house, I did. That was the Bhly way 1
could do it.
Why not while you were walking along?

: . ' , .
Because they was.surrounded, they surrounded me.

How did fhey surround you?

One was in front of me, one on the side of me, one was in

back of me. i

Okay. Triangular shape around you, you are in the middle?
Well, I was close to the bars‘for.the Ceil. Yoﬁvhave got
one -- I could explain it on the thing. You gotAone right
here. There're the bars, walkihg down‘the.tier, you got
one right here, you got one right here. I'm right here up

against -- walking next to the cells.

. .Okay. Then the other one is between you and the outside of

the walkway?
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No.

Yeah.

Okay. Were you walking or running or 54_

I was walking.

Okay. So nothing else said from the time that Perez said,
"You are going to our house," and you get to the house, was
anything said in between there?

)

Okay. Any particular reason why you were afraid?

Well, because there's three of them and there'svone of me.

Okay. When you got to their cell, what happened?

They jumped me. They knocked me out first, then théy
started beating on me. |

Okay. And let's -- as'best as yOu'dah from your
recollectiqn, what happened first? You say they jpmped
you.. You know, if you know who hit or did whatever to you,
say that as well, but what we want to know is what

specifically happened to you from the beginning to the end?

.Well, I got in the house.
Who was the first one'in\the house?

Charles Weber.

Okay.. And then who was the second one in?
Me.

Okay. And then do you know who was the very next one

~behind you or --

Perez.
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Perez. So then Mr. Gallegos would have been in the very
back then?

Yes.

Okay. What happened'then?
Well, what happened was they -- Gallegos socked me, knocked
me out. And then I -- I fell out. And then they started

beating on me in the corner of the cell.

Okay. Did they wait until you were in the corner of the

"cell to do that or did they start?

.No. When they knocked me out, I was basically trying'tok
:gét away, but they ended dp getting me in the corner‘of thé
cell. |

Okay. So you moved to the corner or —-

Yeah, because they started beating on me. And I ended up

coming to and then I crawled to the corner of the cell

because I was trying to get refuge, so I didn't get hurt
too bad.

r6kay. Now, you said as you went-in that it was Gallegos

that socked you. = How.do you know it was him?

. Well, because he's the one that was béhind me.

Okay. I thought you said Perez?

No. When I came in the cell, Perez was behind me. He

ended up getting on his bunk. He came in and got on his

bunk and then Gallegos came in and socked me.

Okay. So it was only two of the inmates hitting you?

HOLT - DIRECT 180




4

10

11 .

12
13

14

15 |

19

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

LGN —H O .~

pd

O

LGOI - © B

No. All three was hitting me. Once I got in the corner,

they were all stomping and hitting me.

How do you know Perez was involved in that if he had ‘gone

up to hié.bunk?

Because whenever I came to, they were all hitting me --

"Okay .

-- ip the corneEJ v

Now,.whatvabout the cell door? When you came in, did --
was the cell door open before you guys\arrived there?

No. |

So you had to wait for it to open?

Yeah. Charles Weber was there before anybody and the door
came open wﬁile he was waiting. He went in, then hi went
in, then Perei went in, then Gallegos went in.

Okay. Do you know whether.or'not the cell door was closed
then after that?

I don't remember it closing.

Okay. Was anything being - While you were —- While
that wés happeniﬁg, were yoﬁ saying anything? |

I was just'screaﬁiﬁg. |

Okay.

I was in pain. They was beatiﬁg on me.

Okay. Were any of them yeliing as well, you know,
screaming?

Yes.
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Okay. th? | <

A1l of them, all three of them.

Oﬁay. Okay. And during this’altercation,wdid you, you
know -- Let;s go back, you know, prior tO-anything being
done either to §bu or by you. When you got into the cell,
did you -~ did you 5ay anything to them once you got into<

the cell?

"No, no.

Did you touch any of them, push any of them?

No.

Okay. While then this assault was going on,  did you do-

anything to any of the three that you can recall, you know,

hitting back?

No. I was -- I was covering myself.

Okay. Do you know whether or not you might have gfabbed
somebody's arm?
I might have.

Okay.

‘But I don't remember because I was getting beat up pretty

bad. -

Qkay. There was testimony that one of your fingernails was

vripped off. Do you recall that?

Yeah.

How would that have happened? -

Well, because it was already coming off anyways. And then
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I got in the corner and the wall too, my nail was long. I
got in the corner and the wali, theyuwere beating me,'my
ﬂéil came offlwhile I was trying to protect myself, got
capght in the cement.

Okay. ©So you are not -- So you wouldn't be saying that

= O T O B T © R

you were trying to gouge any of them or --

No.

~- scratch at any of them?

No.

A o

‘How did it end?

The officers came. The officers came and saw me on the

1

ground bléeding and théy stoppéd it. They called the other

officers to come and get mé and them.

Okay. Was there anything specifically during this

‘alterCationjspecifically pertaining to Charles Weber --

No.
~- that you recalled him saying to you?

No.

Okay. Did you need medical attention?

Yes.

Okay. What happehed with that?

My nose got broke, so I needed to go downtown, down to the

St. Mary Hospital for them to do an EKG or whatever that is

-

~
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B 1 where they stick you in likev~- a MRI, and‘they didvthaf.-
/ 2 And then a couple of days later,/they took me down to the
3 "Dr. Morgan, a plastic.surgeoh, and he was .working on my
4 nose; Then they said that I nee@ another surgery because
5 " my nose collapsed so -- | |
6 |0 Are they stilirworking on your nose-?
7 (A >Well; they denied my surgery so --
8 |0 Okay’.’\ |
9 |A But if they would have -- if they would.have approved it,
10 - yes, 1 wouﬂdvstill bé waiting for surgery. )
11 Q Okay. Those thrée inmates,}Peréz, Gallegos ahd4Charles
12 Weber, do you see any bflthose three in here today?
13 ‘A Yes. | -
i4 Q And who do,ybu see and where is;he?
15 |A Charles Weber. |
16 {0 'Whereris he located?
17 |a Right there. |
18 ~ MR. ACOSTA: AQkayL Let the record reflect that the
19 Defendant has been identified.
20 10 Did -- From the very staft, kind .of goihg.baék now when
21 they met -- conffontéd you at' the head of the tier before
22 " getting to the cells, was anything said about a weapon?
23 |A §E:r | | |
24 |0 Was —— . Did you seé.any,ﬁeapon?
25 |A  No. | \
/
HOLT - DIRECT - _184 J



NeJ

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

21
22
23
24

25

0 - © B

©

QO

o o® 0 P

During the walk to the cells, did you see or hear anything

about a weapon?

No, I felt a weapon.

What did youlfeei and how?

It's like a shank. It's a homemade shank.

Okay. And for the-jury, who may not have heard the term

AR

shank;_what is a shank?

It's like a knife.

Okay? A homemade one?

Yes.

Okay. And how would they make such a thing?

* You can use:a razor with a toothbrush, basically hard

plastic.

Okay. They would strap a razor to the toothbrush?

They could do that or just grind down the plastic into a

poiht and use that.

Okay. You never saw it, -but you felt that there was onev?

Yes.

———

Okay. During -- Once you-got to the cell during this

altercation, did you ever see it?

‘No.

——

Did you ever feel it once you were in the cell?

Not when I got in the cell, no.

Okay. That day -- Once officers responded and you were

'being treated and being photographed, were you being
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- questioned by one or more officers about this incident as

well?
Yes.

Did you'evér say ahything about a shank that day?

Not that I recall.

Okay. Why not?

Because I was -- I'm thinking about‘ﬁyself getting --
making myself feel better. I'm more focused on me because
I was in pain.

Okay. You mean making yourself better medically, is that

what you are talking to?

- I was in too much pain. And I wasn't thinking because I

was more concerned about me, more concerned about me and
not what happened.

Okay. When was the first time you ever said anything about

a shank?

Whenever .they came and interviewed me.

Okay. Who is they? - 1 .

‘The proSecutor and the people's -- the defendants' --

The defense attorneys?

Yeah.

Okay. And let me backup. After 'that firstAday, did any

officers question you again about this incident or was it

~Jjust that first day?

No. Sérgeant Penrose came and talked to me while I was in
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the hospital.

Okay} | \

I was in the hospital for a week.

Okay. When you say the hospitai, the prison hospital?
Yes.

ﬂSkay. And during that time, though, you still didn't say

anything about a Shank?

I talked to Sergeant Penrose about a shank.

You did?

Yes.

Okay. Did he say anything about it?.

“No. He said that whenever they come and talk to him, he

will let them kn@g;j

Okay. ’Were you on aﬁy péih'medication during that time
frame? |

Yes.

Okay.' As the officers were responding and getting the
other prisoners there from the cell that day on Septemberi

3, were you paying any attention to whether or not anybody

" was using the toilet?

There was somebody using the toilet.
Who?
Charles Weber. )

Okay. And why would you know or remember that?

Because whenever the officers came, they handcuffed Perez
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and Gallegos &nd téok them out on the tier and Charles
Weber was sitting on the‘toilet --

Okay. - ’ l

-- waiting for,them-to come and get him. They\téok me out
and took me over té the hospital. ‘

Okay. o

After they took the first two out.

Okay. There at the p}ison when things like this happen
there's what is‘called a diséiplinary hearing process. Are’
you familiér with_that? | '

Yes. |

Okay. Did you wfite a statemenﬁ for su¢hia process for
Defeﬁdént Charles Weber? - S o | -

No. : - B

.Okay. Let mé - Showing you what has been marked

~Plaintiff's Identification Number 22, ask’ you to look at

that. Do ybu'recognize that?

Yeah. That's what 1 wrote for Perez.

Are- you positive that was for Perez and not Weber?

Yes.

———

Let me see it a second. ©Okay. Why would you have written

that for Inmate Perez's process?

—

Because Perez told the officers that he's the one that did

)

it, that was fighting with me. But it was all three of

‘them. So I wrote this for Perez. And it is not positive.
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1 ’ It's -- it's just telling them that they assaulted me. I’

2 7 didn't =~

310 Okay. Were you asked to do this written statement?

4 |A ' For Peréz, yes. | |

5 |Q Who asked you?

6 |A The officers gave it té me from Perez. 1?ere2 put my name
7 down for~someoné for me to write and say that he did it.

8§ |Q Okay. Did any of the other inmates ask that you write a.

9 - statement for them?
10 |A No.
11 é‘ QOkay. Sorthis is the only one that you wrofe a statement
12 fqr?, -
13. A 'Yééf
14 |Q Okay. 1Is that an-é@curate copy?
;15 A Yes. A | R e -
16 ;Q Okay. TIt's got your éighature there?
17 |A Yes.
18 MR. ACOSTA: The State would offer Number 22.
19 . MR. MAKUS: Well, Nﬁmber 22 is hearsay, your Honor. And
20 unlesé it is being uéed fof impeachment purposes, actually
2i © intended to use it for impeachﬁent purposes, I guess, I
22 | . have no objection. |
23 | THE COURT: 22 will be admitted.

24 10 Have you ever gone into anybody else's cell before?

25 |A  No.

——
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‘this time, your Honor.

RS

Okay. And why is that?

Because it's against the rules of DOC.

So even if y0u~Wére friends with another —- with inmates in
another cell like . next door, it's against the rules for you

to go inside their cell?

Yes. It is against the rules, but people do go inside

- cells.

Okay. And Christopher Weber wasn't there at that time?

No. ”He was at work.

7/

© MR. ACOSTA: Okay. . I don't have any furthervquestionS'at
 THE COURT: Mr. Makus?

CROSS;EXAMINATION

BY MR. MAKUS: -

You're in the state penitentiary for a lengthy period of
time; would that be a fair statement?

Yésl

. And you know if you get involved in fighté, it's against

the rules?
Yes.

And you'know if you get in fights, you lose good‘time?
Yes. : |

And it could be sanctions?

Yes.

l

Not only loss of good time, but being put in isolation,
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segregation, those kinds of things?

Yes.

'So you know you are not supposed to get in fighté?
Yes.

~ [Tow, you told the jury about this shank?

Uh-huh.

That you said was involved?

Yes.

——

It was Perez with the shank?

No, Gallegos.

gallegos? But you didn't say anything about it that day?

No.

But YOﬁ did have a chance to talk to Officer Hartford over

here; did you not?

Yes.

But you didn't tell him about it?

-No}

Because you were concentrating on yourself?’
Yes.

But you told him about everything‘elée except the shank;

did you not? | |

Yes.

The first time you mentioned the shank was when you said

you interviewed with the prosecufdr and the defense -

attorney. I was the defenséAattorney; righﬁzj
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. 2 10 Is that the first time ydu told anybody about it?
| 3 |A  Yes. '
7 4 Q Well, you tailked to me, what,'maybe three weeks ago, a
5 ﬁonth ago?
6 |A  Yes.
710 r§ou also told the jury conérgry‘to that that before you
8 fold me ébout it you told Penrose‘abgggvzégﬁ o
9 |A  'Yes, I did tell Penrose.. |
10 {©Q So who’Was the first one you’fold, me O;APenrose?
11 A Penrose. |
12 10 Did you write this' statement out in regards to what
13 | . hap?ened? | -
14° |A = Right.
15 Q And you say Perez asked you to write this,statementé—
16 |A  Yes. |
17 10 ,éign‘t_meﬁtidﬁ'aﬁyﬁhing.about.the Bhaﬁk when you wrote the
.18 sfatemént out involving thelincident;vdid you?
19. (A No. | / |
20 10 Xgp_waﬁted Peréz punishéd?
21 |A Yes. \
22 10 You wanted them all punished?
'23  A lYes.
24 |Q But you just forgot at the time you wrote this staﬁemént to
25 " mention the fact of the shank?]
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That‘came right'after I'd gotten out of the hospital.‘
Okay. So you forgot at that time about the shank?
I wés more concérned about myself:
Well,'you wrote the statement to inflict punishment} isn't
vfhat right? | |
Yes. |

IBut at that time after you were out of the hospital, you

wrote the statement. “What,'you were still conéentrating on

yOurselfvahd forgot to mention the shank?

'Yeah. I'm more concerned about my -- my wellbeing fhan é
_shank1 ' » | |

' You were asked about Exhibit Number 21. And you'say you
were first appréached'on Exhibit Number 21 in this area
over ﬁere? ;

‘No. In this area right here.

And there's an ihdividual camera in the area?

This -~ There's an individual camera in the corner right

here.

Well, if that's the place you were approached,’thenvit

would have been videoed?

Yes.;4_

e,

And all these people gathered around you was videoed?

It should have been.

Yeah. Are you sure -- One other question. You said you

approached this cell 162
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Yes.

‘And you -had to wait for the door to opén?

No. The door was open because Weber got to the cell first.

Well, you were all three together, as I understand it?

Rigﬁﬁ. And Weber got to the cell.

~Well, how far ahead of you was Weber?

About twd feet, three feet.

Okay. What's the process for getting a cell opened?

You got to put a sign out. . ' .

What do you-mean?

The ceéll —— the cell's got a sign that says 16. You'pﬁt

the sign out, then they open the door..

F&nd the person who épens the door) is the person who would

be in -- the person in the west booth?
Yep.

So the person 'who is in the west .booth is sitting-in there

looking?

}
Right.

You put your sign out, then he presses a button to open the

door?

-Yes.

So he has to see what's going on when he pushes that

button?

“Yeslt

Is there any oral communication in regards to this?
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No.
Okay. And this person in the booth, he would be how far
away from the cell?

About 15, 20 feet.

. More or less about the distance from you to me or closer?

Farther.

- Farther? How much.farther?

Probably about another ten' feet.
Well, do you know what 15 or 20 feet is?
It's pretty long..

Exhibit 6 is a photo that's been introduced. And on the

lower left corner would be'a picture of your hahds?

Yes.

You agree those are your hands?

7

Yes.

And you agree that the knuckles have abrasions on them?

Yes.

Did'you get those abrasions by throwing a punch?

No.

HOQ diabyou get the abrasions on your'knuckles?

I waé protecting myself,.and they was stomping on me and
kicking me. |

And so what you are saying is somebody stomped on your
hand, that's how you got the abrasions on the knuckles of

your right hand?
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1 |12 There was abrasions on both hands.
2 10 I'm asking about the right hand. They took a picture of
3 the right hand?

4 |A.  Yes. When they was kicking,me and stomping.

5 , MR. MAKUS: I don't have\any.more qﬁestions, yOur}Honor.
6 THE COURT: Anything‘further; Mf} Acosta?

71 | REDIRECT EXAMINATION

8 BY MR. ACOSTA: o R N

9 |0 When you say that they were kicking and stomping on’ you,
10 J- you were —- that's how your hands would.have gotten
11 S injured?

12 |A  Yeah, because I was like this protecting myself;

13 [Q . Okay. For the record, bécause it can't -- sheis Wriﬁing'it
14 down and\it can't)see whét you juét did,‘forithe‘record,youv
151;. had_your hands over -- |
16 ?A’ Over my_head. .
17 |@ - the front top of your head?
18 (A Yes. |
19 |0 With the»paims against your head?’
20 |A Yep.
21 10 The knuckles eﬁposed?
22 |A  Yes.
23 Q Did any'amount of this altercation occur there in the
24 ‘ corhér itself or did you‘just end up there after it had
25 .| - Héppened? g
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No. It happened in the corner from -- It happened from

the door‘to the corner.

Okay. &2nd for the record, the cormer, the walls of this

cell that you

Cement.

were in, what kind of material is it?

Qkay. Were you -~ Was there physical contact with your

skin against the walls of the corner of this cell?

" Yes,

MR. ACOSTA:
THE-CQUET:
MR. MAKUS:
THE COURT:
MR, ACOSTA:
THE/GOURT:
you very‘mucﬁ1
~ THE COURT:

MR. ACOSTA:

THE CQURT:
MR. MAKUS:
THE COURT:
- MR. MAKdS:

CHARLES WEBER,

Okay. I don't have any.further questions. -

Anything further, Mr. Makus?

No.
May this witness be éxcused?
Yes, your Honor.

You may step down. You are excused. Thank

Call your next withess.

The Stdate rests, your Honor.
STATE RESTS

Are you ready to proceed,- Mr. Makus?

Yes;, T am. |

Call you% first witness.

I call Mr. Weber.
the Defendant, being ‘called
as a witnéss in his own
behalf, being first duly

sworn by the Court, testified
as follows:
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"IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHLQGTON

EDGAR ARMANDO PEREZ, {(Excerpt of Trial -
Testimony of

Mark Holt)

: % %
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WALLA WALLAQ@@\
X :
STATE OF WASHINGTON, ) (90'%, '@
' - ) O, ", 4
Plaintiff, ) X2
) . fo)
~vs- ) No. 04-1-00533-4
) o
)
)
)

Defendant.
The above-entitled and numbered cause came on for jury
trial before the Honorable DONALD W, SCHACHT, one of the
judges of the above-entitled court, sitting in Department
Number 2 thereof, on the 5th day of May, 2005, in the
courthouse in the City of Walla Walla, County of Walla

Walla, State of'Washington.

APPEARANCES:
MR. GABRIEL ACOSTA, Deputy Prosecuting Attorney, appeared
in behalf of thé Plaintiff. 7
MS. GAIL SIEMERS, Attorney at Law, appeared in behalf of
the Defendant.
WHEREUPON, the following is an excerpt of the proceedings
had, to-wit: , ) /
MR. MARK HOLT, : called as a witness in
' behalf of the Plaintiff,
being first duly sworn by
the Court, testified as
follows:

THE COURT: Go ahead, Mr. Acosta.

MR. ACOSTA: Thank you.
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‘Five wing, WSP.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ACOSTA:
Sir, would you please staté your name and spell it?
Holt, H-o-1-t.

And your -- What is your first name?

-~
s

Mark, M-a-r-k.

Okay. And where do you currently live?

Okay. Washington State Penitentiary? -

Yeah. ' p
Were you housed there back in September of last'year?
Yeah.

Okay. And at that time where were you housed at?

Six wing.

~0Fay.,

Six unit. . . ' -
I'm sorxry?

Six unit, E tier.

Okay. And which cell?

Three.’

Okay. On September 2 of last year, were you —— First of

J
‘all, on September 2 of last year, did you, know an inmate by

the name of Christopher Weber? Did you know that inmate?

Yes.

Did you know a Charles Weber?
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Yes.
Did you know an Edgar Perez?

Yes.

- And Joseph Gallegos?

Yes.

And did they live\on your same unit?

Yes.

In your same tier?

Yes.

Okay. On September 2, did you have contact with Charles
Webef?

Yes. -

And where was -— Tell the jury, you know, when and where
that contact was.

Contact came when I”—— I was standiﬁg ih,front of the tier
waiting to go on the tier. Him, he came up to me and cut

in front of me, then two guys cdme behind me, put a shank

on me and told me I have got to go to their house.

Okay. Let's back up. I'm talking about September 2 and
talking about Charles Weber. You've gotten ahead of me by
a day. | |
Okay. éefore that ~- before what happened then you are
starting to talk &bout, did something happen the day

before?

" Yes. On -— Out on the baseball field.

H
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Okay. Why don't you explain what happened there on the
baseball field. |

Well, one of the Webers plowed me while we was playing
softball. And i tried to get him because I wqﬁ;purning the
double play, T tired to get hiﬁ to call the guy out. They
wouldn't call_him_ogy{ so it just elevated from there.
Okay. What do you mean elevatéd?

I said, all right. First, I said, all right. I said it
wi%; get hgndled.' That'$ what I said.  And then they said
-— Because I said tha;, after I went over and apologized
to them. I weqt over and apologized to him for saying it.

They said, you.can't\apoiogizg for that. 2nd then the next

day came and said YOu can't apologize for anything you say.

Who said you can't apologize?

Gallegos, Weber and a couple of the other guys that I don't

even know.

Okay. So nothing happened that day --

That day, no.

-— at the ball field?

No.

Okay. Then the following day before going to what you were
stafting to describe, did you have lunch that day? -
Yes.

Okay. Where do you eat lunch?

- North side chow hall.. ‘ , )
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Okay{ There at the institution?

There's a south side and a north side where we live. We
was eating on the north side chow hall for six wing.
Okay. That day at the chow hall, either in line waiting
for the food or while eating there, do ydu get your food

there at what, a line or bar or something?

Yeah. You have got to walk through the line to get your

-

food.

Do you have assigned seating there or --

No.

Can you sit wheréver you want?

Yeah. / )

Are there like tables or indiviéual seating, how is that?
There are tables.

Okay. ‘You ate there. Did you eat with anybody in
particular?

I sat with the Moslems because I was Moslem at the time.
I'm not a Moslem no more.

Okay. So then after you got dqne eating, what did you do?
I got up to go back to the unif.

Okay.

When I was walking back to the unit, I got up on the start
of my tier and they came ﬁp on me.

Okay. First, and let's kind of take it step by step. When

you left the chow hall to go back to your unit --

HOLT - DIRECT 5.
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MS. SIEMERS: Excuse me, your Honor. May I ask for a
side bar for a moment, please? I think we are going to
have a problem in a minute.

THE COURT: Okay.

(A side bar conference was
had between the Court and

- counsel off the record.)

THE COURT: ' Ladies and génElemen, I'm going to need to
excuse you for.a minute and take up a matter. Please do
not discués this case in any way. k

{(The following occurred out
of the presence of the jury:)

THE COURT: I don't know, Mr. Holt, that you intended to
say or mention anything about this, but I have ruled in
limine -- I have ruled before trial that fhere is to be no
mention in.testimony by either side about any gang |

affiliation o:\membership’of groups or anything.

Your comment about you were Moslem at one time but no

longer is really of no consequence. That was just made in

passing. But yod did identify the people that assaulted

you by name, but there should be no reference as to any

group they might belong to or association that they might

have with other inmates or anything other than friends. 1If
you know them to be friends of acquainténces of somebody oi
a cellmate, that would be fine. But other identifying type

of remarks shouldn't be made.
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THE WITNESS: All right.

THE COURT: Okay. - Does that cover it, Mr. Acosta?
MR. ACOSTA: I believe so.
THE COURT: Ms. Siemers?
MS. STEMERS: Yes, your Honor. Thank you.
THE COURT: Okay. Ready to p;oceed?
; MS. SIEMERS: Yes. .

THE COURT: Oka&. Bring the jury back in, please.

| (The following occurred in the
presence of the jury:)

THE COURT: You may proceed, Mr.- Acosta.

MR. ACOSTA: Thank you.
Okay. We were kind of going in sequence., You left the
chow\hall. Did you leave by yourself?
Yes. A
Okay.‘ And so as you traveled then to your unit, is it a
long distance or short distance?
It is not that long; but it's ﬁot'that short either.
Okay. But anyway -- -
In bereen.
In between there what happened, if anything?
Nothing happenea until I got ih the unit.
Unfil you got to your unit or onto your éier itself or --
In front of my tier, waiting to go fo my tier.

Okay. Like there is a gate door between this opening and
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pied

your tier? -0

Yeah.

‘Okay. And you are saying that's where something happened?

That is where they came up on me.

Okay. And why don't you explain what you mean by that?

Were they already thére or you were there and they came up

to you?

I was there, they came up to me. One stood in front of me,

one sfood,on the side and one behind me shanked on me

Felling me I have got to go to their house.

Okay. And let's see. Did you see who the three

individuals were?

Yes.

And Who were they?‘

Edgar Perez, Charles Weber and Gallegos.

Okay. '

Joseph Gallegos.

You used the term shank. What is a shank?

Yeah, it's like a knife. It's a homemade knife.

Okay. Are inmates allowed to have knives there at the

prison?

No.

Okay.- So'how would they have a knife or a homemade knife?
MS. SIEMERS: Objection, calls for .conjecture.

THE COURT: 1I'll overrule the objection. Go ahead.

HOLT - DIRECT 8
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They -- You could use a toothbrush and razor blade.
Okay. Did you see it yourself?

N

No, I felt it.
You felt it? Whére did you feel it?

In my chk.

Go ahead.and describe, you know, what happened from that
point on. |

One of them was in front of:me, one of them was on the side
of me,. one of them was behind me, escorted me down to the
tier to their house. They live in El6. I got in their
house. They jumped me. They all attacked me.

Okay. I think you said you lived in E3?

Right. |

So’you passed your cell?

Yes.

Okay. This is\the third floor; right?

Yes.

Any particular reason why you didn't make some noise or
gestures to anybody who might be on the floor in this wing

unit for help?

I was scared. \I had the shank in my back. Théy told me

any false move, they will shove me over the tier.

Ckay.
So I didn't say nothing.

Okay. And were you aware of there being the security or

HOLT - DIRECT 9
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control booth off to the side? .

No, he couldn't see me. YNQ, he couldn't see.
That person couldn't see you?

{Shock head.)

Why is that?

‘Because Edgar Perez was standing on the side of me so they

couldn't seé me.

Okay. So one in front, one beﬁind, one beside you between
you and the --

Yeah, so the booth can't see.meA—— them walking me down.

Okay. And, you know, you said that they said to go with

\ them or they would kill you. Did you believe that would

pgppén if you didn't go with them?

Okay. What did you think would happen when you got to

- their cell?

Well, I still thought they was going to kill me, but —- and
they was trying to beat me to death.

Okay. When you got to where their cell was, was the cell

" door open®?

No. They was standihg'there for a minute, then they opened

‘the cell, one guy went in. The guy on the side of me stood

. where the booth can't see me. ‘And I went in, then the

other two came in and they jumped me.

Okay. And you use the term jumped you. Okay. Why don't

HOLT - DIRECT . 10
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you, you know --
They beat me up.

Okay. Did they start as soon as you entered or what

happened once you entered?

.Once I entered, they started)

Okay.

They knocked me out.

Okay.

Then started giving me the boots and hitting me.

Could you see who was doiﬁg it or how could you tell?

I got kngcked out at first. I was knocked out at first and

then I kind of ended up crawling to a corner of the cell

- and getting in the fetal position so I could protect

myself. ?hat‘s when I realized that all three of them was
?eating‘§nvme because I kind of woke up out of being
knocked out. _I_WQEe up. I crawled to the corner of the_-
cell and that's when I was £n the fetal position, but I
could see all three of them because I was like this
(indicating), you know what I'm saying? Because I Wanted
to see what they are doing to me as far as —-- |
ééﬂyéﬁ had your béck to the wéll loocking at them or -~

No. I was in the corner like this (indicating).

Facing the corner or --

!
No.

—-— back to the corner?

HOLT - DIRECT - 11
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Like I say, the wall is right here. Here is the corner. I
was right here like this (indicating) in the corner and
they was kicking ﬁe and hitting me and all -- all three of
them was doing it because I heard them too --

Okay.

-- talk.

What did you hear?

We weremg9éyg to ki}l you, this and that and then they
started calling me é rape-po and -- '

Okay. Okay. At some point in time did it stop?

Well, when the cops came.

Okay. | r
The cops . —-. cops, the officérs.
Cor:ectional officers? | _ B

Yes.

And is that in general terms what the inmates used towards
the correctional officers, cops?

Well, if they don't like them. I mean, my -- myself, I
call them officers.

Okay.

I mean, cops is like a disrespect to them because they are
officers. They are correctional officers. They are not
cops. So it was a disresﬁegt thing to call them a cop.

So anyway, at some point it stoppéd and officers arrived?

Yeah.
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What happened with you next?

The cops took out Gallegos and then took put Perez and then
they took me out and they had to take me to the hospital.
They took me to the hospital there at the prison and they
éieaned me up and then they took me downtown and they had
to do an EKG on me a —— or -- \

CT? '

They got a €T scan —-

Okay. ‘

- fof mf bp@yiwthen_they took me back. I was in the-

hospital for like a week and they put me in the PC.

'Okay. Just back up a'little bit. When you say puE in the

hospital for a week, that is the piison,hospital? N

The prison hospita}.

Okay. And so you were actually being housed thefeAfor a
week as opposed to —-

Well, yeah, because they neéded’to ~- the plastic surgeon
Ead_to come up and see-me and ggt me -- them tgucléér me to
go back downtown aﬁd get my nose worked on and he did that.
And they kept me in the hospital for'like_another 3 or 4
days. That was in the week I seen him, like, the third day
and then, like I said, in the hospital for like 4 more dayg
and they sent me to 3 wing. Now I'm waitiné for surgery -
again.

Qkay. You used the term PC?
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Protective custody. Ty

Okay. Now, what injuries, if any, did>you sustain or get -
from this éssault?

I got my nose broke. It was actually caved in and then I
just had other minor injuries. My eye was split, bruising
all over my body. |

Okay. Now, at some point in.timé did officers or
deteétives come and question you about what happened?

Yes. - |

During any of that time did you mentiqgﬂaﬁything about a

shank?

No.

 Why not?

Because I was scared. I was still scared.

Why would you be scared?
Because, I mean; they gotvpeopie that can do things.

MS. SIEMERS: Objection, your Honor.

THE COURT: On what basis?

MS., SIEMERS: The basis is the rules made by the Court
earlier today.

THé COURT: I will overrule the objection. Go ahead.
Actually, waitlfor a question. | | .
Going back to when you were —-- when you went into the cell
at any poiht, I suppose, before you séy that they jumped

you and kicked you, all that kind of thing, did you do

HOLT - DIRECT 14
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anything to any of them, you know, with your hands, with
your body at all? |

No. /

Okay. As they were then doing whatever it was that they
were doing ﬁo you, did you @o anything in an effort to
protect yburself?, Céuld you have scratched one of them or
_ donen—j | | |
Not that I can think of, no. I was protecting myself.

That's all I was doing. |

Okay. |

And didn't do no good, really.

Okay. Have you evef gone into another person's cell that

you didn't live %n?

No. | . -~
And why not?

Because it is against the rules.

Okay. Had you‘ever been to =— Well, so you‘had never been
~inside this'cell before?

No.

And had there been any prior occasions when you had tried

to enter their cell?

No. )

MR. ACOSTA: I don't have any further questions at this

time, your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Siemers?
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- CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. SIEMERS:
Good afternoon, Mr. Holt. You remember speaking to me up
at the prison at one time?
Yes. |
And do you remember at that time when we were discussing
what happened you had told me about the softball game. Was
that not.the case? |
Yeah.
And the;e was an encounter between you and the younger --—
or the brother Weber; is that correct?
Yeah. -
You recall at the time that we spoke wﬂat-gesture you héd
made or said to Mr. Weber if this happened again, do you
recall? p | ‘ /'
Yeah.
Okay.” What did you say?
Told him it will get hapdleq.
And how would that -- What does that mean? . B
“ That's all I said. It would get handled.
Do you}recall at any_time tellihg Detective ‘Gilbreath from
the Walla Walla Police Department anything about an elbow;
do you remember?
Yeah. He threw an elbow.

Do you remember saying anything about you using your elbow?

HOLT - CROSS 16
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And when you discussed this with Detective Gilbreath, yéu
were not saying anything about that, the elbow?

Yeah.

And did you not -- Do you remember telling me that you

were going to use an elbow next time?

Yeah.

Okay. So your testimony is that indeed you stated you

would use an elbéw next ti@g?

Yep.

And so geﬁting handled was from -— also f%om.ybu; is that
correct? -

Yeah.

§Q}there were threaps_mg@e to Mr. Weber as well as you
claim there were th;eats.made from Weber?

Yeah. -

So it's mutual statements?

Yeah, but I came and apoidgized to Mr. Weber,fyouvknow.
That's not my queétion; Would you please listen td the
question? It was mutual discussion with you and Mr. Weber
at that time?

Not -— It was me and practically their whole team.

Well, so at the time you said to Detective Gilbreath that

you were talking to Mr. Weber, then that's not accurate?

I was falking to Weber —-
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—- but his whéle‘team too.

So was there“f—“ You were speék}ng to Mr. Weber aﬁd the
Whole teamiwhen you admitFed that you were going to elbow
someone? |

Yeah.

And that this_was going to be handled was to the whole
team? »

Well, yeah.

You were making_th;gats to a number of people?

Yeah. |

When you stated earlier that the three:people who were in
the cell that you e&entually.ehded up in, Number 17, you
stated they said this is going to be handléd;.who would

theY’be specifically?

- Perez, Gallegos and Charles Weber.

And they said what they said in unison, this is'going to be
handled, .or how was it said?

They came up on me and they said you are going indgur house
and it is going to get handled, the whole problem.

Do you recall when you spoke with me up at the prison that

you said it was Weber, Gallegos who stated that to you?

I don't recall saying that.

Do you recall whether or -not you made é statement to

foicer Gilbreath about the fact that it wéé Weber and

~
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Gallegos who had made threats to ydu?

'I don't remember.

Do you remember specifically telling me in our interview
that it was Gallegos who had the alleged shank?
Yep.

So Gallegos is who carried the shank?

. Yes.

And at no time is there -- was there any other tesﬁimony
from you or statements you made to the detective it was

someone else who had a shank?

No.

And your testimony today is that you, in fact, didn't see

any shank?

Right.

That ydu felt a shank?

Yep. ; ‘ . . -

Have you been shanked'before? Is there some reason why you
would know? |
Yes. I have been stabbed béfofe. v

Okay. Andxwhat did that ~-- this shank or how do you know
this shank was a shank?

Because I know how jthe razor feels.

And so did you have clothing on at the time?

Yeah.

Did you have something on like you have today?

HOLT - CROSS ;19
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No. I just had a'T7shirt and pants.

Excuse me, what was that?

T-shirt and pants.

Okay. And you assumed only from what you Fave known

before? |

Yes.

Okay. You stated that“ypu were scared?

rep. : | . '

Were you scared when you were talk}ng to the whole team and
» was goilng to be handleq?

No, I was angry.

So not scare@?

ﬁq, notvreal;y.

And sd addressing a group of people and making threats does

not scare you?

Well, yeah, but I was angry at the time so it just

didn't -- o ’

Are you angry anymore since this‘allegedly happened.to you?
No. |

You are not angry?

No. 'I haven't had no reason to be angry.

Even though you allegé that other-people have beat you up '
and kicked you and caused you this great fear?

-Thefe ain't no reason to be angry no more. I mean, it's —-

They ain't around to do it no more.
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That's because you are in PC?

Yes.

s

You earlier said in your testimony they were calling you

names?

They was while they was beating’me up. :

@hat did you say they were saying while they Were beating
you_up? |
It wasn't thét, why they was beatihg me up, théugh.

How do you know why they were beating you up?

Because they said over the softball game.

That was after your threats that you were handling it?

Yeah.

And so at the time they were calling you'names, it only had -

to do -- it didn't have to.-do with the softball game?

No.

Okay. If it didn't have to do with the softball game, why

do you think they were calling you names?

MR. ACOSTA: Your Honor, I think the State 6bjects. I

think we need to take a matter up out of the presence of

the jury.

THE COURT: This is getting close to the motion in
limine. I'm going to sustain the objection. Go on to
another line of questions, please.

MS. SIEMERS: Your Honor, I_wogld state that he opened

the door.
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THE COURT: Well, I'm going to find it is more —-- that“
it's not probative of an issue that is before the Court at
this time. If it becomeéﬂbrobative later on, I will let
you reopen the matter.

MS.  SIEMERS: Okay. Thank you.

Do you recall your interview with Detective Gilbreath?
At the hospital? |

It &6uld have been. \ \
Yep.

Huh?

I talked to him, but I don't remember what I\said. I mean

" Do you recall telling Doctor —-- or Detective Gilbreath or

making any stafements regarding that Mr. P$rez —-— why Mr.

Perez‘would have claimed to have done the assault?

I have no idea why he did that.

Do you recall telling Dgtective Gilbreath that he claimed

he alone had assaulted Inmate Holt, the claim believed to

be owing to the fact he has the earliest release date, do

yoﬁ recall saying that?

No. I know -- I know Perez saild that he was the only one

to the officers that was doing it.

And do you recall giving Detective Gilbreath the statement
that I justlstated, that he had the earliest release date?

He had the earliest release date?

"
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Uh-huh.

Early release déte-to»what?

That according>to Detective Gilbreath's report, which was
taken straight from you —-

Uh-huh7

-- that there was a statement that's owing to the fact that
Mr. Perez was going to be getting ou£ soon, he was the oné
who tookntheriéggj Do you recall? o
No, I doﬁ't rémgmber that.

You don't? Okay&ﬁ Do &ou recall you said you Were
For about 20, 30 Secoﬁds.

How wouldquu know that?

Well, because they was beating on me and wokeé me back up.

I mean, they were beating on me. I crawled to the corner
Y

I

of the cell.

Well, have you ever been unconscious before?

-Yes. I have been knocked out beﬁgre.

And do you know every time you have been knocked out how
long it took for you to get conscious again?

No, because I've never been knocked out in a fight.

So other being unconscious is different from being knocked

out in a fight?
Well, in a fight I could get knocked out and be woke right

back up.

o

HOLT - CROSS 23




10
11
12
13
14
15

" 16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

ORI N oI R e

o » 0O P

That's according to your experience as a medical person or
how do you know that?

That's through my experience but not as a medical person.

~It's just through experiences I have been through.

/

And you stated that you believe you had a head injury?
Yeah.
Have you had head injuries before?

Yep.

And do you have any awareness of how long a head injury

mighf cause you to have difficulty remembering?

No.

So you are not aware whether a fight or‘otherwiseAif yoﬁ

iwere unconscious what a head injury might do to you?

Well, I take medication, that's why I got a bad memory, but

So do you have a bad memory on top of the head injury aﬁd
unconsciousness? | |
Yeah.

And the fact that you were angry about this softball game?
(Nodded head. ) -

You stated -- How long did you sﬁate you believed that you
were in the cell without being able to get out?

Probably a couple of minutes.

Couple of minutes?

Close to five minutes.
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And how much of that were you unconscious?

Probably about 30 seconds.

And this was éuloss of consciousness, arhead injury and
otyer - you said you had a broken nose and just other
miscellaneous injuries that weren't much?

Bruises, those scratches.

Uh-huh. Okay. So bruises aﬁd3little scratches and the
nose”?

Yeah. My whole body was}bruised up.

Uh-huh. You said, though, at the time that you were

fighting back because you were protecting yourself?

No. I wasn't fighting back.

. How were you protecting yourself?

I was in the fetal position.

Towards the wall?

4¥eah.

With your head down?

L%ke thié (iﬁdicatiqg).

Your hands over your face?

p}ke this (indicting), yeah.

So that even. though you were down, head down, face dowmn,
hands over your-fgce, you could teil exactly who it was
that was doing what to you?

Yeah, because I couid see out the corner of my eye. I'm

like this (indicating).
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You were unconsciqqs and had a head injury also?
No. I was awaﬁé when I -- they had me in the Cérner.
Uh-huh. Andrhow long did you think you were in the corner?
How long do I think?' I was.ﬁor about 3 minutes, 4 minutes.
So when you were head down in the corﬁer with the total of
5 minutes, but 3 or 4 of them you couldn'f see anything and
yet the other time yoﬁ could tell exactly what was
héppening.

MR. ACOSTA: Objection, badgering the witness.

THE COURT: Is that a question, Ms. Siemers?

MS. SIEMERS: Yeah. I'm asking him if he can tell what

)
was happening in the Seconds.

THE COURT: Ask him that question. I wasn't sure.
Okay. You couia tell what was happening during the 3 or 4
or 1 or 2 minutes that you were not able to see other than
because —-
They was-beating on me the Whole time.
Uh—huh.‘
They was béating me all thgrway into the corner.-
I believe, your testimony then was that you were cfawling}in
the corner yourself, was it’hof?A Is that different from
what you just said? -
I was crawling in the corner of the cell. .They was beating

on me, then beatihg me while T got to the corner of the

cell.
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Uh-huh. All Qf this was based on the softball game problem
with Mr. Weber? | | |
Yeah.

MS. SIEMERS: One moment, please. No furthér questions.

THE COURT: Anything further, Mr. Acosta?

MR. ACOSTA: One or two, your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. ACOSTA: f
Goiné back to the ball field and you said I went to
apologize?
Yep.
When you were di;ecting,your comments, you said the whqlg
team ﬁas there?

Right.

.So the whole team heard but you were directing your "

comﬁents to the Whoie team or just to Charles or
Christopher Weber?
In general.

This apology?

The apology? 'The\apolbgy was towards Weber.

Okay. And were you angry while you wefe apologizing?

No. I was more calmed down because by —-

So —-

-—— the people that I'm with, they came up and talked to me

and calmed me down. And then I said, well, maybe I should
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go apologize. So'I went and épologized. And they said you
can't apologize for words.

Okay.
' So —-

Okay. Okay.

I O N e

So I just walked away after that.
MR. ACOSTA: I don't have any further questions.
THE COURT: An?fhing further, Ms. Siemers? ‘
MS. SIEMERS: Just one other thing.
lRECROSS—EXAMINATION
BY MS. STEMERS:
Q Do you remember when you were talking to Detective
q;lbreath séying you actually blacked out?
A Yep.
MS. SIEMERS: Okay. No further questions. ¢
THE.COURT: Anything further?
MR. ACOSTA: No, your Honor. _
THE COURT: May Mr.'Holtube excused?
MR. ACOSTA: I believe so.
THE COURT: You may step down. You are excused. Thank
you.
MS. SIEMERS: Your Honor[ I would like to reserve the
dpportunity of calling him back if that is necessary.
THE COURT: He will be available.

(Tgstimony of Mr. Holt COncluded.)
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